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§537 RICO Forfeitures



Supreme Court rejects, in the RICO context, maxims that criminal forfeitures are dis​favored and forfeiture statutes must be strictly construed. (537) Defendant was convicted of violating the RICO statute, 18 U.S.C. §1962, for his participation in an arson-for-profit scheme in which buildings were burned to obtain insurance proceeds. In the course of attacking the jury’s verdicts of forfeiture under 18 U.S.C. §1963(a) of insur​ance payments made to the defendant, the defendant relied on the general propositions that “criminal forfeit​ures are disfavored in law and that forfeiture statutes, as a consequence, must be strictly construed.” The Supreme court upheld the forfeiture of the insurance payments, ruling that RICO forfeiture reaches the proceeds and profits of the underly​ing criminal activity. The Court did not comment on the general validity of the principle of strict construction of forfeiture statutes, but noted that Congress specified in the RICO statute that it should “be liberally construed to effect its remedial purposes.” Russello v. U.S., 464 U.S. 16, 104 S.Ct. 296 (1983).xe "Russello v. U.S., 464 U.S. 16, 104 S.Ct. 296 (1983)."
Supreme Court holds RICO forfeitures not limited to “interest” in the RICO “enter​prise,” but may include proceeds and profits of illegal activity. (537) Defendant was con​victed of violating the RICO statute, 18 U.S.C. §1962, for his participation in an arson-for-profit scheme in which buildings were burned to obtain insurance proceeds. The jury returned special verdicts for forfeiture under 18 U.S.C. § 1963(a) of insurance payment to the defen​dant. In a unanimous opinion by Justice Black​mun, the Supreme Court rejected the defen​dant’s argument that criminal forfeitures under the RICO statute are limited to “interest” in the racketeering “enterprise.” The court held that the phrase “any interest [the defendant] has acquired in violation of §1962” should be inter​preted broadly and embraces both proceeds and pro​​fits of the underlying criminal activity. Rus​sel​lo v. U.S., 464 U.S. 16, 104 S.Ct. 296 (1983).xe "Russello v. U.S., 464 U.S. 16, 104 S.Ct. 296 (1983)."
1st Circuit upholds forfeiture of entire amount of laundered money, rather than net profit, from substitute assets. (537) Defen​dants participated in a large organization that laundered money for Colombian drug traffick​ers. During a 15-month period, conspir​ators wired over $136 million to foreign bank accounts controlled by the Colombians. The dis​trict court ordered the forfeiture of $136 million under one of RICO's forfeiture provisions, hold​ing several conspirators liable for the full $136 million, and others liable for lesser amounts. Because the $136 million had been wired out of the country, each defendant was liable to pay the forfeited amount out of substitute assets. The First Circuit agreed that the $136 million wired to the Colombians constituted racketeering "proceeds" forfeitable by the persons who handled or controlled these funds before they were wired. Moreover, a defendant's forfeiture extends to funds obtained by other members of the conspiracy, provided such funds were reasonably foreseeable to that defendant. Such a forfeiture did not constitute an excessive fine. It is quite rational to hold a defendant liable for an amount of money foreseeably laundered by himself and his own co-conspirators. U.S. v. Hurley, 63 F.3d 1 (1st Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. Hurley, 63 F.3d 1 (1st Cir. 1995)."
1st Circuit approves forfeiture of all funds laundered rather than organization's profit. (537) Defendant ran an organization that laundered over $100,000,000 in drug money during a five year period. He argued that the proceeds subject to RICO forfeiture should not include all the funds laundered by his organization, but only the organization's profit. The First Circuit, without discussion, upheld the forfeiture of all of the funds laundered by the organization. The appellate court agreed with the reasoning in the district court's opinion. U.S. v. reasoning in the district court's opinion. U.S. v. Saccoccia, 58 F.3d 754 (1st Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. Saccoccia, 58 F.3d 754 (1st Cir. 1995)."
1st Circuit upholds forfeiture of $2.3 mil​lion in pro​perty that was "source of influ​ence" to RICO enter​prise. (537) Defendant operated nightclubs, peep shows, movie the​aters and adult book​stores. He was convicted of various RICO of​fenses as a result of using vari​ous "straw" per​sons and sham corpora​tions to avoid paying license fees and back taxes. He contended that his corpora​tion's criminal forfeiture of $2.3 million in property was so grossly dispropor​tionate to the serious​ness of the offense as to consti​tute cruel and unusual punishment. The 1st Cir​cuit rejected this claim. Defendant based his argument on the bare assertion that the value of the forfeited property grossly exceeded the value of the license and back taxes. Bald as​sertions of this na​ture are insuffi​cient. For​feitures under 18 U.S.C. §1963(a)(2)(D) apply to property "affording a source of influence over a criminal enter​prise." Forfeiture is thus warranted only to the extent the jury determined the property was tainted by racketeering activity. Here, there was ample evidence that the for​feited properties were an indispensable compon​ent of de​fendant's scheme to de​prive local au​thorities of back taxes. U.S. v. Bucuvalas, 970 F.2d 937 (1st Cir. 1992). xe "U.S. v. Bucuvalas, 970 F.2d 937 (1st Cir. 1992). "
1st Circuit affirms that government is enti​tled to interest on proceeds from sale of forfeited prop​erty. (537) Defen​dant and the government agreed to per​mit certain property to be sold pending defen​dant's RICO trial, and the sale pro​ceeds were placed in an in​terest-bearing escrow account. The jury re​turned a verdict of forfeiture pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1963(a)(2), and the prin​cipal and accrued in​terest in escrow was forfeited to the government. The 1st Circuit affirmed that the accrued interest was properly subject to forfeiture. Sec​tion 1963(c) pro​vides that title to for​feitable property vests in the United States upon the commission of the act giving rise to forfeiture. Absent an ex​press agree​ment to the contrary, interest earned on the sale proceeds be​longs to the entity entitled to the escrowed prin​cipal. Contrary to defen​dant's assertion, the government did not waive its "relation back" rights. The written agreement authorizing the sale disclosed no waiver. U.S. v. Bucuvalas, 970 F.2d 937 (1st Cir. 1992). xe "U.S. v. Bucuvalas, 970 F.2d 937 (1st Cir. 1992). "
2nd Circuit holds that imposition of a criminal forfeiture under RICO, based upon facts determined by a judge by a preponderance of the evidence, did not violate Booker. (537) Following an 11-week jury trial, defendants were convicted of various RICO, mail fraud, and conspiracy violations. The district court entered a criminal forfeiture order of $20.7 million. On appeal, defendant challenged the constitutionality under the Sixth Amendment of the district court's imposition of a forfeiture order against him, in light of the Supreme Court's decision in Blakely and Booker. In Booker, the forfeiture amount was based in part on facts found by the district judge by a preponderance of the evidence. This case contains a thorough analysis of the effects of Libretti, Blakely, and Booker on criminal forfeiture orders. The 2nd Circuit held that the district court's imposition of criminal forfeiture on the defendant did not violate the Sixth Amendment and that it committed no error in calculating the forfeiture amount. Affirmed. U.S. v. Fruchter, 2005 WL 1389888 (2nd Cir. June 14, 2005).

2nd Circuit finds that ERISA accounts are not protected from criminal forfeiture. (537) Defendant was prosecuted and convicted of various narcotics and money laundering violations. He challenged the forfeiture after a special jury verdict, arguing that the anti-alienation provisions of ERISA prohibit the forfeiture of IRA accounts. In a case of the first impression in the 1st Circuit, the Court followed the 7th Circuit’s analysis of analogous RICO forfeiture provisions, and held that the IRA accounts were not meant to be protected from criminal forfeiture. The 2nd Circuit also upheld the forfeiture of his home, which he had built with his legitimate earnings, as a substitute asset. Affirmed. U.S. v. Vondette, 2003 WL 22018878, (2nd Cir., Aug. 27. 2003). 

2nd Circuit holds government waived its right to substitute assets in let​ter agree​ment. (537) In lieu of a formal RICO forfeiture hearing, defen​dants entered into a letter agreement with the gov​ernment in which they agreed to forfeit $22 million in cash in full satis​faction of the for​feiture penalties in 18 U.S.C. §1963. To secure the payments, defen​dant delivered affi​davits con​fessing judgment in the amount of $22 million. After defen​dant's default, the government filed the confes​sions of judgment and moved for an Order of Forfeiture for the $22 million. The district court then granted the gov​ernment's motion under 18 U.S.C §1963(m) for a substitution of assets, and entered a forfeiture order vest​ing in the gov​ernment title to defendant's interest in vari​ous corpora​tions. The 2nd Circuit reversed, holding that by enter​ing the letter agreement rather than submitting the for​feiture issue to the jury, the govern​ment waived its rights, in​cluding the right to a substitu​tion of assets un​der §1963(m). While the agreement contem​plated the sale of the properties to raise the $22 million in the event of defen​dant's default, it did not contem​plate the auto​matic vesting of title to the properties in the gov​ernment. U.S. v. Paccione, 948 F.2d 851 (2d Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Paccione, 948 F.2d 851 (2d Cir. 1991)."
3rd Circuit holds that 8th Amendment re​quires a criminal RICO forfeiture to be proportioned to the charged offense. (537) Based upon defendants' RICO convictions, the district court ordered a forfei​ture of 100 percent of defendants' interest in a busi​ness which was primarily legitimate. The jury had found that one defendant's interest in the corporation was tainted to the extent of 10 percent while the other defendant's interest was tainted to the extent of five percent. The 3rd Circuit held that the 8th Amend​ment re​quires that a criminal RICO forfeiture order be justly proportioned to the charged offense. Some proportionality analysis is required when the defen​dant makes a prima facie showing that the forfeiture is grossly dispro​portionate, or bears no close relation to the seriousness of the crime. Here, de​fendants raised a prima facie claim of gross dispro​portionality, and thus the district court should have given the issue careful scrutiny. U.S. v. Sarbello, 985 F.2d 716 (3d Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Sarbello, 985 F.2d 716 (3d Cir. 1993)."
3rd Circuit applies reasonable doubt standard to RICO criminal forfeiture. (537) The jury's criminal RICO verdict found cash and real property were subject to forfeiture under 18 U.S.C. §1963(a). Defendant argued that it was error to instruct the jury that the burden of proof was a preponderance of the evidence. The 3rd Circuit agreed. When the criminal forfeiture provisions were enacted in 1970, it was generally understood that a criminal forfeiture claim was similar to a substantive criminal charge and therefore had to be proved like a criminal charge. Congress later amended both RICO and CCE by specifically providing a preponderance of the evidence burden of proof with respect to CCE criminal forfeiture proceed​ings and certain aspects of RICO, but left §1963(a) undisturbed. This showed that Congress intended the higher beyond a reasonable doubt standard to control in a §1963(a) proceeding. U.S. v. Pelullo, 14 F.3d 881 (3d Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. Pelullo, 14 F.3d 881 (3d Cir. 1994)."
4th Circuit finds that substitute property subject to forfeiture included all property of defendant at time of crime giving rise to the forfeiture. (537) Defendant was convicted for drug-trafficking and related offenses, and he was ordered to forfeit $1.5 million in proceeds of his criminal conduct. When he could not account for the whereabouts of these proceeds, a preliminary order forfeiting substitute property in the form of real estate and other assets was entered. After he was indicted, the husband began transferring various assets. Defendant’s wife and sons filed a third-party petition asserting an interest in much of the property listed in the preliminary order. The district court amended that order to release some of the substitute property and issued a final order of forfeiture as to the remaining property. The 4th Circuit held that the due process rights of the wife and sons were not violated by failure of the district court to give them an opportunity to interject themselves into the criminal case prior to the entry of the preliminary order of forfeiture. The wife and sons were entitled to notice of preliminary forfeiture order, and to a subsequent hearing to challenge the validity of that order, and at a hearing, they had the opportunity to present witnesses and evidence and cross-examine the government’s witnesses. The 4th Circuit held that substitute property subject to forfeiture included all property of the defendant at the time of the crime that gave rise to the forfeiture. Furthermore, the 4th Circuit held that the future rents from a jointly-owned bowling alley were not subject to forfeiture, but defendant’s interest in deeds of trust, which were obtained by the wife when she transferred jointly-owned real estate third-party purchases, were, under the relation back provisions. Affirmed in part, reversed in part, and remanded. U.S. v. McHan, 2003 WL 22243146 (4th Cir., Sept. 29, 2003). 
4th Circuit rules that preponderence of the evidence is proper standard for criminal RICO money laundering forfeitures. (537) Defendant was convicted of various fraud and money laundering violations arising from a theft and chop shop ring that he headed. After trial, the district court conducted RICO forfeiture proceedings, applying a preponderance of the evidence standard. His company was ordered to forfeit all of its assets, worth a total of $2.8 million. He appealed the RICO forfeitures, arguing that Apprendi requires a reasonable doubt standard and that the forfeitures are an unconstitutionally excessive fine in violation of the Eighth Amendment. The Fourth Circuit found that the proper standard for the RICO forfeitures was the preponderance of the evidence standard, which was met. The Fourth Circuit distinguished Bajakajian to find that the forfeiture of all of the company’s assets was not excessive under the “grossly disproportional” standard. Affirmed. U.S. v. Najjar, 300 F.3d 466 (4th Cir. 2002).

4th Circuit refuses to set aside forfei​ture after re​lated party's conviction was va​cated. (537) The government filed a RICO forfei​ture claim against cer​tain stock, arguing that the claimant held the stock only as nominee for Kovens, a convicted RICO viola​tor. In 1984, the claimant and the gov​ernment reached a settlement which allocated 60 percent of the disputed stock to the United States and 40 per​cent to claimant. In 1988, Kovens' conviction was vacated. The 4th Cir​cuit found no abuse of discre​tion in denying the claimant's action to recover the stock based on the vacation of Kovens' convic​tion. He was not entitled to relief under Rule 60(b)(4) from a void judgment, nor was he entitled to relief un​der Rule 60(b) (5) and (6). The forfeiture judgment was not dependent on Kovens' con​viction. Strategic deci​sions made during the course of litigation provide no basis for relief under Rule 60(b)(6). Schwartz v. U.S., 976 F.2d 213 (4th Cir. 1992).xe "Schwartz v. U.S., 976 F.2d 213 (4th Cir. 1992)."
4th Circuit holds that court may enjoin dispo​sition of substitute assets belonging to fugitive RICO defendant. (537) De​fendant was in​dicted on various RICO viola​tions which caused the failure of a savings and loan asso​ciation. The in​dictment charged defendant and others with transferring $22,000,000 to Swiss bank accounts. Defendant fled the country, but later wired $500,000 to an accomplice in the United States. The district court found that the stolen RICO funds were not the source of wired money, and therefore it had no jurisdiction to en​join the disposition of the funds pending trial. The 4th Circuit disagreed, ruling that the district court did have jurisdic​tion to enjoin the disposi​tion of the wired funds. Under the RICO forfeiture statute, a money judgment can be satisfied out of any of the defen​dant's assets. The possession of the wired funds by defen​dant's accomplice did not defeat the government's right to those funds, since the accomplice was not a bona fide pur​chaser for value. The 4th Circuit also rejected the accom​plice's ar​gument that the continued restraint of the funds vi​olated her 6th Amend​ment right to counsel and due process. In Re Assets of Billman, 915 F.2d 916 (4th Cir. 1990).xe "In Re Assets of Billman, 915 F.2d 916 (4th Cir. 1990)."
5th Circuit says funds forfeited need not be traced to specific RICO violation. (537) De​fendants were convicted of RICO charges stemming from a scheme to defraud banks through fraudulent real estate loans. Defendants were assessed $40 million and $38 million forfeiture penalties based on amounts received by them, their companies and family members. Defendants argued they should not be forced to forfeit amounts that went to their families and companies. The 5th Circuit affirmed the forfeiture orders, finding sufficient evidence that defendants "acquired or maintained" the amount forfeited. Contrary to defendants' suggestion, the amounts subject to forfeiture need not be directly linked or traced to the specific acts proved. Forfeiture should reflect the scope of the offense. Here, sufficient evidence was offered as to the profits earned by defendants to support the forfeiture order. U.S. v. Faulkner, 17 F.3d 745 (5th Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. Faulkner, 17 F.3d 745 (5th Cir. 1994)."
5th Circuit upholds restraining order per​mitting operation of business but directing certain pro​ceeds to be deliv​ered to gov​ernment until trial. (537) Defendant and others were indicted on racke​teering charges. The government obtained an ex parte re​straining order pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1963(d), which prohibited all the defendants and their unindicted corporations from trans​ferring any assets owned by them. The order directed that weekly payments to defendant from the 1989 sale of four businesses be turned over to the gov​ernment and held until forfeitable upon conviction. The order ex​pressly permit​ted the remaining businesses to stay in operation. The 5th Circuit rejected sev​eral constitu​tional challenges to the va​lidity of the re​straining or​der. Since the or​der permitted the busi​nesses to op​erate in a normal business manner, in​cluding the sell​ing of obscene materials, the order did not consti​tute an imper​missible prior restraint of 1st Amend​ment activity. Defendant was not denied procedural due process. Finally, the fact that the re​straining order bound unindicted corporations did not render it imper​missibly overbroad. U.S. v. Jenkins, 974 F.2d 32 (5th Cir. 1992).xe "U.S. v. Jenkins, 974 F.2d 32 (5th Cir. 1992)."
7th Circuit finds retirement annuity forfeitable in RICO case. (537) The govern​ment appealed the district court’s refusal to forfeit this RICO defendant’s retirement annuity as a substitute asset on the ground that the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA), 26 U.S.C. §408(b), makes annuities of this kind “nonforfeitable.” The Seventh Circuit concluded that “nonforfeitable” merely means “vested” in the employee, and thus that such annuities are not immune from criminal forfeiture. U.S. v. Infelise, 159 F.3d 300 (7th Cir. 1998).xe "U.S. v. Infelise, 159 F.3d 300 (7th Cir. 1998)."
8th Circuit holds that the defendant waived his right to challenge the forfeiture order on appeal when he failed to make a jury trial demand, and that RICO proceeds definition of "gross receipts( of the illegal activity precluded deduction for expenses. (537) A defendant conducted two schemes to obtain federal and state grant money for special legal work related to drug and child support enforcement, the basis for mail fraud and money laundering charges. Under the grant programs the individual prosecutors who did the work were to receive the supplemental funds furnished to the office. The defendant himself was not eligible for any grant money, but he nevertheless arranged to receive some $429,391.47 of the funds. The first program grant, from the U.S. Department of Justice and administered by the Arkansas Office of Intergovernmental Services, was intended to pay a part-time deputy prosecutor to process drug cases for a drug task force. As an elected prosecuting attorney, the defendant was disqualified from receiving the grant money, but he represented through several grant applications that his deputy was primarily responsible for the cases. Although the defendant prosecuted all the felony drug cases, reviewed all related search warrants, and generally handled most of the important legal issues related to drug enforcement, it was the deputy who signed his name to the monthly contractor reports detailing the work. The deputy then received monthly checks from the state which he would first deposit in his professional account and subsequently write the defendant a check for the same amount. The defendant misappropriated the money from the second grant program, funded under a cooperative agreement with the Arkansas Office of Child Support Enforcement in which the state agreed to reimburse the prosecuting attorney's office for legal child support enforcement work, in a similar way. The district court ordered the defendant to forfeit as RICO proceeds the entire $429,391.47, and although he had not requested that the amount of RICO forfeiture be determined by the jury, he moved to vacate the forfeiture order almost four months after it was entered. On appeal, the defendant argued that the district court's forfeiture order was invalid because it was based on factual findings made by a judge rather than a jury in violation of United States v. Booker, 543 U.S. 220, 125 S. Ct. 738, 160 L.Ed.2d 621 (2005), Blakely v. Washington, 542 U.S. 296, 124 S. Ct. 2531, 159 L.Ed.2d 403 (2004), and Fed.R.Crim.P. 32.2. He also maintained that even if it were proper for the court to calculate the forfeiture amount, its figure was erroneous because it included the total proceeds from the two schemes even though he had only been convicted of two predicate acts of mail fraud for each scheme and his legitimate expenses had not been deducted. On appeal, the court held that 18 U.S.C. (1963 provides for the forfeiture of all RICO proceeds, and although criminal forfeitures are no longer required by statute to be submitted to a jury, a party is entitled to a jury determination under Rule 32.2(b) if one is requested. The defendant, however, failed to make such a request, did not object to the forfeiture order at the time it was issued by the district court and never sought a ruling on his eventual motion to vacate it. Thus, he waived his right to challenge the forfeiture order on appeal. Also, the court concluded the district court did not err by calculating the forfeiture amount and the amount the court calculated was not erroneous, because RICO proceeds are defined as the "gross receipts of the illegal activity," precluding any deduction for expenses. U.S. v. Hively, 437 F.3d 752 (8th Cir. 2006) (Feb 10, 2006).

8th Circuit finds that innocent owner defense did not apply to wife’s claim to property interest under RICO forfeiture provision. (537) Husband and wife bought country estate in 1972, and in 1978 wife became the sole title owner. Husband became his RICO crimes in 1984 and from that date forward he funneled some of the proceeds from his RICO crimes into his wife’s checking account from which she paid the mortgage payments. Husband was convicted of 61 counts of mail fraud, wire fraud, and money laundering under RICO, and government sought RICO forfeiture of the country estate. This appeal contains a thorough discussion of how to untangle the real property interests of a criminal from those of the criminal’s spouse for purposes of RICO forfeiture. Wife brought ancillary action claiming legal right to the country estate that was subject to RICO forfeiture. South Dakota district court denied the wife’s claim and ordered forfeiture of the wife’s entire estate, based on her proof that she had sole legal title at time of her husband’s RICO violations. The 8th Circuit held forfeiture under RICO is an in personam sanction against the individual, not an in rem action so a RICO forfeiture reaches only the criminal defendant’s interest in the property. The 8th Circuit found that the innocent owner defense did not apply to the wife’s claim to property interest under the RICO forfeiture provision. The 8th Circuit also held that the wife’s bare legal title to the unimproved house and two land parcels, held at the time the government’s interest in property vested due to the husband’s RICO violations, was insufficient to establish that wife rather than husband had legal right, title or interest vested in the property so as to avoid forfeiture. The 8th Circuit found that the conclusion that wife forfeited entire estate was in error, based on her proof that she had sole legal title at time of husband’s RICO violation. Vacated in part and remanded. U.S. v. Totaro, 2003 WL 22299049 (8th Cir., Oct. 8, 2003). 

8th Circuit says proceeds of RICO enterprise are the gross receipts of the illegal activity. (537) Defendants were convicted of bribery, mail fraud, and RICO violations in connection with a series of schemes to bribe Missouri state officials. The district court ordered forfeiture of the proceeds of the schemes received by one of the defendants in the form of fees for lobbying. The Eighth Circuit ruled that defendants were not entitled to offsets for the direct costs of their lobbying efforts. The court noted that several circuits have permitted deductions for the costs of performing an illegal activity, see, e.g., U.S. v. Masters, 924 F.2d 1362, 1369-70 (7th Cir. 1991), and U.S. v. Lizza Industries, Inc., 775 F.2d 492, 498 (2d Cir. 1985). The panel nonetheless ruled that “the better view is the one that defines proceeds as the gross receipts of the illegal activity.” U.S. v. Simmons, 154 F.3d 765 (8th Cir. 1998).xe "U.S. v. Simmons, 154 F.3d 765 (8th Cir. 1998)."
8th Circuit rules defendants jointly liable for forfeiture of proceeds of RICO enterprise. (537) Defendants Simmons and Fisher were convicted of RICO violations in connection with schemes to bribe various Missouri state officials. The district court ordered forfeiture of money paid to Simmons’ lobbying firm by health, transportation, and construction interests, and made both defendants jointly and severally liable for the total amount of the forfeiture. The Eighth Circuit found that codefendants are properly held liable for the proceeds of a RICO enterprise, and that joint liability was appropriate here even though Fisher did not directly receive the money. It was sufficient that the actions of Simmons and other co-defendants were reasonably foreseeable to Fisher. The court noted the provisions of the RICO statute specifying that it is to be construed broadly, and relied on the general principle of conspiracy law that conspirators are responsible for the foreseeable conduct of co-conspirators. U.S. v. Simmons, 154 F.3d 765 (8th Cir. 1998).xe "U.S. v. Simmons, 154 F.3d 765 (8th Cir. 1998)."
8th Circuit finds receipts of businesses were not all subject to RICO forfeiture. (537) In a RICO prosecution, the district judge entered pre-convic​tion orders appointing a monitor, and later a receiver, to manage insurance‑related companies owned by RICO defendants. The Eighth Circuit held that the government's mere allegation that the companies were enterprises through which defendant conducted racketeer​ing activities did not justify the restraint orders absent identification of the relationship between the companies and the specific assets which might be subject to forfeiture. RICO does not permit the government to seize control of the enterprise that defendants used to accomplish their racketeering, since only defendants' inter​est in the enterprise is forfeitable. The entire gross receipts of defendants' insurance business​es were not "proceeds" of racketeering subject to forfeiture. The insurers' gross receipts would include funds other than racketeering proceeds, such as amounts needed to pay policyholder claims. U.S. v. Riley, 78 F.3d 367 (8th Cir. 1996).xe "U.S. v. Riley, 78 F.3d 367 (8th Cir. 1996)."
8th Circuit holds defendants waived objection to all-or-nothing forfeiture by failing to object to jury instructions. (537) Defendants were convicted of bank fraud and RICO charges stemming from the collapse of the saving and loan association of which they were officers. Defendants argued that the district court should not have forfeited 100 percent of the salaries and bonuses that the jury found were proceeds of RICO activity. They contended on appeal that portions of the salaries and bonuses were earned through legal activity. The 8th Circuit found that defendants had waived this complaint by failing to object below to the jury instruction and verdict form. Moreover, the evidence supported complete forfeiture of the salaries and bonuses. U.S. v. Olson, 22 F.3d 783 (8th Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. Olson, 22 F.3d 783 (8th Cir. 1994)."
8th Circuit rejects constitutional challenges to seizure of non-obscene materials under RICO forfeiture provisions. (537) Defendant was convicted of selling obscene magazines and videos, tax evasion and RICO violations. Un​der the forfei​ture provisions of RICO, 28 U.S.C. §1962, the district court ordered the forfeiture of defendant's interest in his wholesale business and thirteen retail busi​nesses (bookstores and video stores) that were used in his criminal enterprise. The 8th Circuit rejected defendant's argument that the RICO forfeiture provisions unconstitu​tionally crimi​nalized non-obscene expressive material. The forfeiture of the non-obscene books and mate​rials occurred only after he was convicted of racketeering involving the sale of obscene goods. The court also rejected defendant's claim that the forfeiture was an unconstitu​tional prior restraint, imposed an unconstitu​tionally chilling effect on protected expression and was overbroad. The forfeiture also did not violate the 8th Amendment's pro​hibition against cruel and unusual punish​ment and ex​cessive fines. In the only other RICO obscen​ity case, the 4th Circuit held that the forfeiture of a business with to​tal annual sales of $2 mil​lion as a result of $105.30 worth of obscene material did not constitute cruel and un​usual pun​ishment or an excessive fine. Alexander v. Thorn​burgh, 943 F.2d 825 (8th Cir. 1991).xe "Alexander v. Thorn​burgh, 943 F.2d 825 (8th Cir. 1991)."
9th Circuit rules district court lacks jurisdiction over post-appeal attack on preliminary order of forfeiture. (537) After defendant’s conviction of fraud, RICO, and money laundering, the district court entered a preliminary order of criminal forfeiture against his assets, including an Individual Retirement Account (IRA) of which his minor daughter was the named beneficiary. Defendant unsuccessfully appealed his conviction and sentence, and thereafter moved on behalf of his daughter for an ancillary hearing to determine her interest in the IRA. The Ninth Circuit joined the Sixth and Tenth Circuits in holding that, because a preliminary order of forfeiture is a part of the criminal sentence and is a final appealable order as to the defendant, the district court is stripped of jurisdiction to consider a defendant’s challenges to that order once a notice of appeal of the original conviction is filed. See U.S. v. Christunas, 126 F.3d 765, 768 (6th Cir. 1997); U.S. v. Libretti, 38 F.3d 523, 527 (10th Cir. 1994). Moreover, to the extent defendant’s motion was on behalf of his minor daughter, rather than himself, he did not have standing to represent her interests. U.S. v. Bennett, 147 F.3d 912 (9th Cir. 1998).xe "U.S. v. Bennet, 147 F.3d 912 (9th Cir. 1998)."
9th Circuit remands RICO forfeiture to de​termine whether it violated the Eighth Amendment. (537) De​fendant, a de​fense con​tractor, was convicted of RICO viola​tions and the jury found that his entire interest in two corporations and certain Nevada real estate were forfeitable to the government. The 9th Circuit held that even though the RICO statute pro​vides no dis​cretion for the trial judge, the judge must nevertheless determine whether a RICO forfeiture is so disproportionate to the offense as to vio​late the Eighth Amendment's prohibi​tion against cruel and unusual punish​ment. The case was remanded for findings on this issue. U.S. v. Busher, 817 F.2d 1409 (9th Cir. 1987).xe "U.S. v. Busher, 817 F.2d 1409 (9th Cir. 1987)."
 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1Eleventh Circuit holds that under RICO conspiracy co-defendant is jointly and severally liable for forfeiture of proceeds, as partnership in a criminal plan, and that joint forfeiture of proceeds received by other defendant does not violate Eighth Amendment. (537) Defendants, a high-ranking official and his administrative assistant in labor unions, were convicted of operating unions through a pattern of racketeering activity and mail fraud. At sentencing, the district court entered a forfeiture order against the defendants in the amount of $592,254.79, for which they were held jointly and severally liable. On appeal, one defendant contended that the forfeiture order against her should be vacated because the district court should not have adjudged her jointly and severally liable for the full amount of the forfeiture order, and should have reduced the forfeiture amount by the amount of her voluntary restitution. She also argued that the order of forfeiture violated the Eighth Amendment's prohibition against excessive fines. The court first noted that it had previously held that imposition of joint and several liability in a forfeiture order upon RICO co-conspirators is not only permissible but necessary to effectuate the purpose of the forfeiture provision, and to saddle the government with a requirement to determine the precise allocation of racketeering proceeds between defendants would substantially impair the effectiveness of the remedy, as offenders would simply have to mask the allocation of the proceeds to avoid forfeiting them altogether. Defendant argued that a defendant may not be held liable to forfeit the proceeds of the racketeering activity generated by a conspiracy that were not reasonably foreseeable to her. The court disagreed, stating that the acts for which the defendant disclaimed forfeiture liability were the very objects of the unlawful conspiracy and were committed in furtherance thereof, and in that sense, their commission was inherently “reasonably foreseeable to her.” The fact that she was not herself charged with the mail fraud predicate acts did not absolve her of liability for the conspiracy. Thus, the money procured through her co-defendant’s mail fraud-related violations was acquired through racketeering activity directly in furtherance of the objects of the conspiracy and was part of the conspiracy's common pool of proceeds. In this respect the conspiracy resembled a partnership in a criminal plan, in whose proceeds the defendant held an interest. To hold otherwise would be to assign to the government the onerous task of proving to the trial judge which proceeds were reasonably foreseeable to each defendant in a conspiracy. As for the second claim, the defendant argued that the amount of forfeiture ought to have been reduced by two checks totaling $26,500 that she sent to the union after an internal investigation discovered that she had embezzled $116,207.66 from the union's payroll. However, restitution and forfeitureWhile the focus of restitution is on the victim, forfeiture focuses on the defendant. In addition to forcing the disgorgement of dishonest profits, therefore, forfeiture is also a punitive action against the defendant. She last argued that the inclusion of $468,208.52 received by her co-defendant, as applied to her, constituted an excessive fine in violation of the Eighth Amendment. However, the defendant was precisely the type of defendant toward whom RICO is principally directed, targeting not just leaders, but also those who operate or manage the criminal enterprise. Also, she faced a statutory maximum of 40 years' imprisonment and a $500,000 fine and a Guidelines sentence range of 37 to 46 months' imprisonment and a fine of $7,500 to $1 million. Thus, the forfeiture here was significantly less than the maximum fine allowable under the Guidelines, severely undermining her argument that the forfeiture order is grossly out of proportion to the gravity of her offense. Third, that Congress authorized a maximum fine of $250,000 and 20 years' imprisonment for each count underscores that such violations are serious transgressions. Thus, the amount of forfeiture was not grossly disproportional to the gravity of her offense. U.S. v. Browne, 2007 WL 3101961 (11th Cir. 2007) (October 25, 2007).
 were both mandatory, and each serves a different goal. 
11th Circuit dismisses appeal as moot, because Federal Claims Court had found RICO fraud proceeds were forfeited. (537) Paul was charged in a 100-count indictment with defrauding an S&L, the FDIC and the FHLBB by misrepresenting the S&L’s financial condition. He was found guilty after jury trial on 68 counts, and he pleaded guilty to 29 additional counts, including two RICO counts. He was sentenced and ordered to pay restitution of $61 million to the various entities he had defrauded. He then filed an action in Federal Claims Court, alleging that the United States was liable for breach of contract in enacting the FIRREA because it eliminated the use of “supervisory goodwill” as capital. See Winstar Corp. v. U.S., 518 U.S. 839 (1996). The district court evaluated his Federal Claims Court allegations for the purposes of forfeiture under other Federal Claims Court case law and concluded that the pending order of forfeiture against Paul was not disproportionate and not unconstitutionally excessive. The Eleventh Circuit held that the final judgment of the district court was not yet appealable because of the pendency of other individuals’ claims. The Eleven Circuit also found the district court’s 28 U.S.C. Section 2514 order to be clearly correct, but concluded that Paul’s appeal was moot because the Order of Forfeiture no longer had any value. Although the district court was correct in ordering the forfeiture, there was now nothing for Paul to forfeit since the Court of Federal Claims found that the claims had been forfeited by fraud. The Eleventh Circuit thus vacated the Final Order of Forfeiture and remanded. U.S. v. Paul, 2002 WL 31018291 (11th Cir. 2002).

11th Circuit rejects forfeiture of property obtained before charged acts of racketeering. (537) Defendant was convicted of RICO and Travel Act violations. The Eleventh Circuit rejected the forfeiture of defendant's interest in a casino, because the jury found that the first racketeering act he engaged in occurred after he had already acquired his interest in the property. Property forfeitable in a RICO proceeding is limited to that which the defendant obtains directly or indirectly as a result of the racketeer​ing activity. Property acquired before a defendant commits an act of racketeering cannot be said to have been derived from it. U.S. v. Kramer, 73 F.3d 1067 (11th Cir. 1996).xe "U.S. v. Kramer, 73 F.3d 1067 (11th Cir. 1996)."
11th Circuit finds no ex post facto violation in RICO forfei​ture of substitute property. (537) As a result of defen​dants' RICO violations, a for​feiture verdict was entered against certain of defendants' property. Since the cur​rent prop​erty owners were innocent bona fide pur​chasers for value, the district court entered a forfeiture order of substitute property under 18 U.S.C. §1963(m). Defendants con​tended that the application of §1963(m) violated the ex post facto clause because it was enacted after the RICO violations took place. The 11th Circuit found no ex post facto viola​tion in the forfeiture of substitute property. Section 1963(m) did not change the quantum of punishment under RICO nor add any new penalty. It merely provided for an alterna​tive method of collecting a forfeiture judgment. U.S. v. Reed, 924 F.2d 1014 (11th Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Reed, 924 F.2d 1014 (11th Cir. 1991)."
11th Circuit requires prompt hearing on third party's inter​est in seized RICO assets. (537) The government seized, in its entirety, a club which the government claimed was the pro​ceeds of one of the club owner's RICO activi​ties. The other owners of the club filed pe​titions objecting to the for​feiture. The 11th Cir​cuit found the district court erred in not holding an eviden​tiary hearing within 30 days after the own​ers filed their petition, to adjudi​cate the validity of their in​terest in the club. In such a hearing, a third party can prevail on his claim to the disputed property if he can show, by a prepon​derance of the evidence, that his title to the prop​erty vested before the commis​sion of the acts leading to the for​feiture or that he was a bona fide purchaser of the property. The dis​trict court was ordered to hold such hear​ing within 30 days of the 11th Circuit's or​der, or the order forfeiting the property and imposing restraints on the club would be va​cated. U.S. v. Kramer, 912 F.2d 1257 (11th Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Kramer, 912 F.2d 1257 (11th Cir. 1990)."
D.C. District Court dismisses L-claim for lack of standing. (537) On July 8, 1991, Banca Nazionale Del Lavoro, S.P.A. Italy (“BNL”) instructed Bankamerica to wire transfer $100,500 from its account with Bankamerica to its account at Bank of Credit and Commerce International (BCCI) London. Bankamerica moved the requested sum to BCCI (London)’s account at Bankamerica, whereupon the money was immediately frozen by the regulatory action taken as part of the international BCCI investigation. After BCCI’s assets were ordered forfeited, BNL filed a claim for the $100,500 under 18 U.S.C. §1963(l) (an “L claim”). The district dismissed the claim for lack of standing. Once the funds were credited to BCCI’s Bankamerica account, they became the property of BCCI, and BNL acquired only a cause of action against BCCI. The court also noted that the transaction at issue was merely an ordinary wire transfer and did not involve a “special deposit.” Thus, BNL was only a general creditor of BCCI and lacked standing to bring an L claim. U.S. v. BCCI Holdings (Luxembourg), S.A. (Petition of Banca Nazionale Del Lavoro, S.P.A. Italy), 977 F.Supp. 449 (D.D.C. 1997).xe "U.S. v. BCCI Holdings (Luxembourg), S.A. (Petition of Banca Nazionale Del Lavoro, S.P.A. Italy), 977 F.Supp. 449 (D.D.C. 1997)."
D.C. Circuit rules RICO forfeiture reaches pre-tax income, with no offset for taxes already paid. (537) The government sought forfeiture under the RICO statute of the salaries of allegedly corrupt union officials. The officials argued that any forfeiture should be limited to their net after-tax income, and that the government could not demand forfeiture of funds already paid to the government in taxes. The D.C. Circuit disagreed. Observing that RICO forfeiture “is a punitive, not a restitutive measure,” U.S. v. Lizza Industries, Inc., 775 F.2d 492, 498 (2d Cir. 1985), the court ruled that where salaries are earned as a result of racketeering activities, the amount of the forfeiture will be the defendant’s pre-tax income. U.S. v. DeFries, 129 F.3d 1293 (D.C. Cir. 1997) (table) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. DeFries, 129 F.3d 1293 (D.C. Cir. 1997) (table) (unpublished)."
D.C. Circuit adopts “but for” test for nexus between forfeited property and racketeering activity. (537) Defendants were convicted of RICO violations in connection with their positions as elected officers of a maritime union. The RICO convictions were reversed on appeal for defects in jury instructions, but the court nonetheless addressed forfeiture issues likely to arise on remand. The government sought forfeiture of salaries earned by defendants in their union jobs. The D.C. Circuit followed the First, Second, Third, and Seventh Circuits and held that, in order to secure a forfeiture, the government must establish a “but for” causal nexus between the racketeering activity and the financial interest sought to be forfeited. The court then interpreted this standard generously. It held that the government need not show that defendants’ ballot tampering changed the outcome of the elections that placed them in the positions carrying the disputed salaries. Rather, the district court’s finding that the defendants’ racketeering activity “infected the entire election” could be sufficient to prove the required nexus. U.S. v. DeFries, 129 F.3d 1293 (D.C. Cir. 1997) (table) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. DeFries, 129 F.3d 1293 (D.C. Cir. 1997) (table) (unpublished)."
D.C. Circuit upholds forfeiture of pro​ceeds from 23 proper​ties related to RICO violations. (537) Defendants were con​victed of RICO vi​olations in connection with their purchase and sale of 23 properties. On the verdict form, the jury listed racketeering acts relating to only 11 of the 23 properties. The D.C. Circuit upheld the for​feiture of proceeds from all 23 of the properties. It found that the jury must have con​cluded that defendant committed racke​teering acts relating to all 23 properties since the jury reached a guilty verdict on at least one substantive count relating to each property. Therefore, it was proper to order forfeiture of the proceeds from all 23 properties. U.S. v. Madeoy, 912 F.2d 1486 (D.C. Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Madeoy, 912 F.2d 1486 (D.C. Cir. 1990)."
D.C. Circuit upholds forfeiture of portion of proceeds from sale of property partially pur​chased with RICO proceeds. (537) Defendant contended it was improper to require him to forfeit part of the proceeds from his sale of a property, when the property's only connection to defendant's RICO vi​olations was that defen​dant made a down payment on the property with two $5,000 checks drawn on an escrow ac​count in which, from time to time, he deposited illegal proceeds from his racketeering ac​tivities. Defendant claimed that the $10,000 could not have been the proceeds of his rack​eteering activity be​cause at the time the checks were drawn, the es​crow ac​count had a negative balance. The D.C. Circuit re​jected this argu​ment, noting that defendant deposited into the account illicit RICO funds six days after the first check was written, and before the check cleared the bank. The court also upheld the forfeiture of only a portion of the pro​ceeds de​rived from the sale of the property. Since de​fendant used RICO proceeds to pay for only part of the property, it was not irrational for the jury to con​clude that only part of the funds derived from the sale of that property could be traced to the RICO money. U.S. v. Madeoy, 912 F.2d 1486 (D.C. Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Madeoy, 912 F.2d 1486 (D.C. Cir. 1990)."
Federal Circuit holds that where neither the government nor a limited partnership had invoked the arbitration clause in a joint venture agreement, the mere existence of the clause does not divest the court of subject matter jurisdiction. (537) PPA, a limited partnership, entered into a Joint Venture Agreement with LCP, a general partnership, in order to organize, own and operate a legal card-playing club called the Bell Gardens Bicycle Club. Unbeknownst to PAA, money put up by LCP to build and operate the club came from organized crime sources who used the club to launder proceeds obtained from an extensive drug smuggling operation. Following criminal RICO convictions of several individuals, the government obtained through RICO forfeiture provisions the general partnership interest in LCP.  The government managed the Bicycle Club, and in nine years after the forfeiture received more than $30 million in partnership distributions. PPA, however, filed suit against the government under the Tucker Act, claiming that the government had breached its obligations in the joint venture contract, causing damages in excess of $150 million to PPA. PPA also asserted that the failure to honor its contract claim would result in a Fifth Amendment taking of the contract rights it sought to assert against the government. The government moved to dismiss PPA’s contract and taking claims, and the Court of Federal Claims granted the government’s motion. On appeal, the Federal Circuit reasoned that because neither the government nor PPA had invoked the arbitration clause in the Joint Venture Agreement, the mere existence of the arbitration clause did not divest the Court of Federal Claims of subject matter jurisdiction. The Federal Circuit concluded that the lower court erred in dismissing PPA’s breach of contract claims for lack of subject matter jurisdiction, but expressed no opinion concerning the merits of PPA’s claims. Hardie v. U.S., 2001 WL 1154557 (Fed. Cir. 2001) (unpublished).

Louisiana District Court rejects “L claims” of RICO defendant’s children. (595) Fred Goodson and Carl Cleveland were convicted of operating a RICO enterprise involving two truck stop gambling companies which, if properly run, would be legal under Louisiana law. Their interests in the companies were forfeited pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1963(a)(1) and (a)(2). Thereafter, Goodson’s son and daughter-in-law filed claims to the companies under §1963(l)(6), alleging that they each owned a half-interest in each company. The district court rejected both “L claims,” noting that documentary evidence and the claimants’ striking ignorance of the affairs of the businesses they purportedly owned and controlled gave the lie to their assertions. U.S. v. Cleveland, 45 F.Supp. 1288 (E.D. La. 1998).xe "U.S. v. Cleveland, 45 F.Supp. 1288 (E.D. La. 1998)."
Louisiana District Court finds burden of proof in RICO criminal forfeitures is beyond reasonable doubt. (537) Defendants were convicted of multiple RICO, mail fraud, money laundering, and tax violations in connection with gambling activities. Following their convictions, the court ruled on the forfeitability of various properties. In doing so, it found that the government’s burden of proof in RICO criminal forfeiture under 18 U.S.C. §1963 is beyond a reasonable doubt. Citing U.S. v. Pelullo, 14 F.3d 881, 901 (3d Cir. 1994). The court also observed that the government need not show that defendants would not have acquired the forfeitable assets “but for” their racketeering activity. Rather, it is sufficient to show that the assets were “earned and/or maintained through the overall pattern of racketeering activity. U.S. v. Cleveland, 1997 WL 602186 (E.D. La. 1997) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. Cleveland, 1997 WL 602186 (E.D. La. 1997) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
Massachusetts District Court holds burden of proof in RICO forfeitures is preponderance. (537) Citing U.S. v. Rogers, 102 F.3d 641, 647-48 (1st Cir. 1996), the district court held that the government’s burden of proof in RICO forfeiture cases is “preponderance of the evidence.” The court relied on drug forfeiture cases to decide that RICO criminal forfeiture is “part of the sanction or penalty” which can be established by a preponderance, rather than proof beyond a reasonable doubt. U.S. v. Cunningham, Crim. No. 95-30009-FHF (D. Mass. July 8, 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. Cunningham, Crim. No. 95-30009-FHF (D. Mass. July 8, 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
New York district court denies RICO forfeiture of attorney fee because government could not directly trace tainted dollars to payment to lawyers, counsel not provided notice that fee would be forfeited at time retainer paid from defendant’ substitute assets, and fee nevertheless already had been consumed by counsel. (537) The government moved to forfeit $200,000 in attorney fees paid by the defendant as proceeds derived from racketeering activity, and argued in the alternative that in the event the court did not find that the monies were proceeds, the funds were substituted assets that should be subjected to forfeiture. The defense argued that (1) the fees were not proceeds derived directly or indirectly from predicate RICO acts; (2) the tracing of proceeds established that they are commingled funds; (3) at best, the attorney fees may be considered substituted assets of which there was no prior notice that they would be subject to forfeiture; and (4) the attorney fees are now unreachable in that they have been fully exhausted by the law firm in providing legal services for value to the defendant. The defendant Salvagno was convicted, inter alia, of a RICO conspiracy, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1962(d) and a jury returned a special verdict finding a judgment in the amount of $1,707,156. The court first noted that there were thousands of transactions, and that to distinguish a tainted dollar from an untainted dollar was virtually impossible; however, by enacting §1963(m), Congress precisely intended to insulate the courts from serving as either an actuary or accountant or to labor with a calculator in hand on these types of matters. Thus, it held that the Government was unable to prove and trace, by the preponderance of the evidence, that the $200,000 paid to counsel was directly derived from illegal RICO activity. Next, the record indicated that there was a forfeiture allegation in the indictment that included a notice of possible forfeiture of substituted assets; however, no specific assets of any nature were listed therein, and nowhere within the preliminary order of forfeiture was there any mention of substituted assets or their ultimate forfeiture. Without more, this order did not equate to a freeze order on the defendants' assets. The money judgment in and of itself is not a self-executing document. Under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the process to enforce a money judgment is through a writ of execution, unless a court directs otherwise, and the procedure of such execution is governed by the practice and procedure of the state in which the district court is held. Thus, even assuming that the money judgment was truly effective on the date the order of forfeiture was issued as opposed to the date of final judgment at sentencing, the government had an array of rights to employ, but they must undertake affirmative steps to employ such rights. In addition, neither the indictment nor the order gave counsel notice that the $200,000 fee would be forfeited at the time Salvagno paid the retainer from substitute assets, which proper and timely notice would have given the government the legal right to forfeit these funds. Having been alerted to the fact that potential substitute assets existed, prior to counsel laboring full bore on behalf of Salvagno, the government was in the position of gaining a restraining order and/or an amended order but, unfortunately for the government, it did not. Finally, the court concluded that the substitute asset of $200,000 was consumed or expended by counsel. Consequently, the government failed to meet its burden and counsel did not have to spend its substituted assets to satisfy the forfeiture judgment. U.S. v. Salvagno, 2006 WL 2546477 (N.D.N.Y. 2006) (August 28, 2006).

New York District Court says RICO statute does not permit pretrial restraint of substitute assets. (537) On January 20, 1998, John Gotti and 22 other alleged members of the Gambino crime family were indicted on racketeering charges. The indictment sought forfeiture of cash proceeds of defendant’s racketeering activities, or alternatively of substitute assets in an amount equal to those proceeds pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1963(m). The government obtained from District Judge Brieant a pre-trial restraining order preventing defendants from transferring certain substitute assets pending resolution of the case. However, defendants challenged the restraining order and District Judge Parker found that the plain language of §1963(d)(1)(A) does not permit pre-trial, post-indictment restraint of substitute assets. The court dissolved the restraining order as to substitute assets. U.S. v. Gotti, 996 F.Supp. 321 (S.D.N.Y. 1998).xe "U.S. v. Gotti, 996 F.Supp. 321 (S.D.N.Y. 1998)."
New York District Court orders com​pliance with forfeiture order despite Fifth Amend​ment claim. (537) In 1990, defendant was found guilty of RICO violations in connection with corruption in the New York carting industry, and he entered into a forfeiture consent order obliging him and his co-defendants to pay $22 million to the United States within 90 days. Nine years later, that obligation remains largely unfulfilled. A receiver appointed by the court to dispose of certain assets involved in the case, notably the Rosedale Carting Company, determined that defendant may have engaged in schemes to divert the company’s funds to himself in order to keep money from the receiver. The court entered a restraining order requiring defendant to turn over money to an escrow fund and direct persons who were paying defendant rather than the receiver to make future payments to the escrow fund. Defendant refused to comply with the restraining order, asserting the Fifth Amendment on the ground that surrender of the money or disclosure of persons from whom money was coming would subject him to criminal liability. The district court disagreed, ordered immediate compliance, and converted the TRO into a preliminary injunction. U.S. v. Paccione, 992 F.Supp. 335 (S.D.N.Y. 1998).xe "U.S. v. Paccione, 992 F.Supp. 335 (S.D.N.Y. 1998)."
New York District Court finds home owner was straw buyer for mob consigliere. (537) A jury found defendant Ida guilty of RICO violations in connection with his position as “consigliere” of the Genovese organized crime family. The jury also found defendant had a forfeitable interest in a country residence in Westchester County. After the verdict, claimant Hickey made a third-party claim to the property pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1963(l) because he paid for it and remained the record owner. The district court examined the relationship between Ida and Hickey (including Hickey’s payment of over $1 million for property and improvements at a location he never lived, but which was occupied for over four years by Ida and his family) and concluded Hickey was merely a straw purchaser for Ida. The court found that Hickey did have standing to contest the forfeiture, but that his challenge failed because he did not prove by a preponderance of the evidence that he had “an interest in the property superior to Ida’s.” U.S. v. Ida, 14 F.Supp. 2d 454 (S.D.N.Y. 1998).xe "U.S. v. Ida, 14 F.Supp. 2d 454 (S.D.N.Y. 1998)."
Pennsylvania District Court directs government to release restrained funds held in escrow to defendant. (537) Defendant pled guilty to charges against him and filed a motion for return of $150,000 being restrained by notice in the indictment. The indictment contained a figure of $637,441.40 representing defendant's total net proceeds from the sale of two properties purchased with loan money from banks he had defrauded. After the indictment some funds in escrow were disbursed to a third party, leaving $355,000 remaining in escrow. This opinion contains a discussion of what constitutes "proceeds," and whether it has a broader meaning to include profits. The Eastern District of Pennsylvania District Court agreed with defendant that he is entitled to subtract from the gross proceeds the ordinary and necessary costs of generating the income. These expenses include the overhead costs of doing business, payments of interest and closing costs. The district court found that the disputed funds are "proceeds" within the meaning of the statute and are subject to forfeiture. But, the offsets to which the defendant is entitled exceed the amount of funds held in escrow. Thus, the district court held that the defendant is entitled to have the funds still held in escrow released to him. Defendant's motion granted. U.S. v. Pantelidis, 2005 WL 1320135 (E.D. Pa., June 1, 2005).

Pennsylvania District Court dismisses claim of defendant’s lawyers to substitute assets as premature. (537) Defendant was convicted of RICO offenses and the government sought forfeiture of certain investment accounts. Because these accounts held untainted money before funds derived from criminal activity were deposited, the entire contents were not directly forfeitable; the accounts were, however, forfeitable as substitute property. At the same time the government filed its motion for forfeiture of substitute property, defendant’s criminal lawyers filed a petition to adjudicate their interest in the substitute assets. The district court dismissed this petition as premature, but noted that the lawyers could file a third party claim pursuant to 21 U.S.C. §853(n) after the entry of the preliminary order of forfeiture. U.S. v. Stewart, 1998 WL 472466 (E.D. Pa. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. Stewart, 1998 WL 472466 (E.D. Pa. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
Pennsylvania District Court asserts author​ity to appoint trustee to preserve corpora​tion’s forfeited assets. (537) Defendant was convicted of RICO, mail fraud, wire fraud, and money laundering and 100% of the stock in his insurance company was ordered criminally forfeited. The district court appointed a receiver to assure that the assets of the corporation were protected. When former officers, directors, and employees of the company sought indemnifi​cation from the company’s assets for their own legal expenses in defending against the criminal investiga​tion, the trustee denied their requests. The district court approved the denial because payments for attorneys’ fees would dissipate the corporation’s assets and reduce the value of the interest forfeited to the United States. U.S. v. Stewart, 1998 WL 472466 (E.D. Pa. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. Stewart, 1998 WL 472466 (E.D. Pa. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
Pennsylvania District Court rules com​mingled funds forfeitable only as substitute assets. (537) Defendant was convicted of RICO violations, mail fraud, wire fraud, and money laundering, and the jury found certain of his assets forfeitable under the RICO and money laundering statutes. The district court held that the entire the contents of one of defendant’s bank accounts were not directly forfeitable because the account held untainted funds before criminally derived funds were transferred into it. See U.S. v. Voigt, 89 F.3d 1050, 1087-88 (3d Cir. 1993). Nonetheless, the entire contents of the accounts were forfeitable as substitute assets. The district court also ruled that the forfeiture did not impermissibly burden defendant’s right to counsel. A defendant has no Sixth Amendment right to spend forfeitable funds to finance a criminal defense. U.S. v. Stewart, 1998 WL 472466 (E.D. Pa. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. Stewart, 1998 WL 472466 (E.D. Pa. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
Rhode Island District Court rules pendency of §2255 petition does not stay execution of forfeiture judgment. (537) Defendant was convicted of RICO conspiracy and laundering drug proceeds. A criminal forfeiture verdict also entered, and the government sought forfeiture of various substitute assets. Defendant’s conviction was affirmed on direct appeal, and thereafter he filed a collateral attack on the conviction under 28 U.S.C. §2255. The district court held that the pendency of a §2255 petition does not stay execution of a criminal forfeiture judgment. U.S. v. Saccoccia, 62 F.Supp.2d 539 (D. R.I. 1999).xe "U.S. v. Saccoccia, 62 F.Supp.2d 539 (D. R.I. 1999)."
Federal Claims Court has jurisdiction over challenge to government’s sale of forfeited assets. (537) Defendant pleaded guilty to RICO violations and agreed to forfeit $1,000,000. By plea agreement, he surrender​ed to the government specified property which was to be sold and the proceeds applied to the forfeiture obligation. When the property fetched less than $1 million and the government sought to collect the outstanding balance, defendant sued claiming that the government breached an obligation of good faith in liquidating the property at far less than its market value. The district court found the defendant had no standing to assert an interest in the property itself or to contest the final order of forfeiture; however, he would have standing to sue the government for breach of its contractual obligations under the plea agreement. Nonetheless, any such suit would have to be brought in the Federal Court of Claims, rather than the district court, because defendant’s requested remedy was an award of money damages. U.S. v. Zinner, 1998 WL 437270 (E.D. Pa. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).
